#### **BYLAWS**

of

# VINTAGE HILLS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION a Washington nonprofit corporation

#### ARTICLE I. OFFICES

This corporation shall have such offices as the board of directors may designate or its business may require from time to time.

#### ARTICLE II. NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

The initial number of directors of this corporation shall be three.

The number of directors is otherwise subject to change as provided in Section 2 of Article IV.

#### ARTICLE III. MEMBERS

Section 1. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the members shall be held on the first Wednesday in the month of March in each year beginning in 2005, at 7:30 p.m. for the purpose of electing directors if any are to be elected and for the transaction or such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday in the state of Washington, the meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the annual meeting is not held on the day designated herein, the board of directors shall cause a special meeting of members to be held as soon thereafter as may be convenient to elect directors.

<u>Section 2. Special Meetings.</u> Unless otherwise prescribed by statute, special meetings of the members may be called for any purpose or purposes by the president or by the board of directors and shall be called by the secretary at the written request of any director or members holding not less than one tenth of all votes of the members.

Section 3. Place of Meeting. The annual meeting or special meetings of the members shall be held at such place within King County, Washington, as the board of directors may from time to time designate.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written notice stating the place, day and hour of a meeting of members and, in case of a special meeting of members the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered to each member entitled to vote at such meeting not less than ten (10) days and not more than fifty (50) days before the meeting, either personally or by mail, by the secretary or by the person or persons authorized to call meetings of members. If written notice is placed in the United States

mail, postage prepaid, addressed to a member at the member's address as it appears in the records of the corporation, notice shall be deemed to have been delivered to the member.

Section 5. Quorum. The presence in person or by proxy of holders of one-fifth of the votes of the members shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of members. If a quorum is present, a majority affirmative vote of the members present and entitled to vote shall be the act of the members unless the vote of a greater number or voting by classes is required by law, the articles of incorporation or these bylaws.

Section 6. Method of Voting. The holder of a membership entitled to vote may vote in person or by mail or by proxy. No right to cumulate votes at the election of directors shall exist. Each membership shall have one vote on each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of membership.

Section 7. Voting by Certain Members. The votes of memberships held by a corporation, domestic or foreign, may be voted by such officer, agent or proxy as the bylaws of such corporation may prescribe, or in the absence of such provision, as the board of directors of such corporation may determine. A certified copy of a resolution adopted by such directors shall be conclusive as to their action.

The votes of memberships which are held by administrators, executors, guardians or conservators may be voted by them either in person or by proxy, without a transfer of such memberships into their names. The votes of memberships which are held by trustee shall be entitled to vote memberships held by him without a transfer of such memberships into his name.

The votes of memberships which are held by receivers may be voted by such receivers, and memberships under the control of a receiver may be voted by the receiver without the transfer thereof into his name if authority to do so is contained in an appropriate order of the court by which such receiver was appointed.

Section 8. Informal Action by Members or Directors. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the membership of directors or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the membership of directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all the members of directors entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof.

#### ARTICLE IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

<u>Section 1. General Powers.</u> The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its board of directors.

Section 2. Initial Directors. The members of the initial board of directors shall serve for an initial term until 95% of the lots defined in Article II Paragraph 16 of the Articles of Incorporation have had single family residences constructed thereon or have

been occupied as residences, or until March 30, 2005, whichever first occurs. Any vacancy occurring in the initial board of directors, regardless of the cause therefore, shall be filled by the action of the remaining directors on the board. Upon the expiration of the initial term of the initial board of directors, three directors shall be elected. One director shall be elected for a term of one year. The term of such directors shall end on the day of the month on which the annual meeting of members is held; provided that in any event each of such directors shall serve a term of at least one full year. Thereafter, at the expiration of the term of each of such directors, a director shall be elected for a term of two years to fill the vacancy. In any event, each director shall serve until a successor is elected and qualified and shall be elected at an annual meeting of members.

Section 3. Change in Number. Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors may be increased or decreased consistent with statutory requirements and subject to the provisions of this Article IV by amendment to these Bylaws. After the initial term of directors ends, no person shall thereafter be qualified to be elected as director of this corporation or to continue to hold office as director of this corporation unless such person is a member of this corporation, except that an employee of a corporation which is a member or a person who is a partner of a partnership which is a member or an employee of a partnership which is a member shall be qualified to serve as a director of this corporation. Except as provided in the Articles of Incorporation and unless removed in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, each director shall hold office until the second annual meeting of the members after the meeting at which he was elected and until his successor shall have been elected and qualified.

Section 4. Election. A person receiving the most votes at an election of directors shall be elected regardless whether such person receives a majority. If more than one director is to be elected at a meeting then each director shall be elected separately so that, for example, the first vacancy shall be filled by election before the nominations are closed and the election is held for the second vacancy. Nominations shall be made separately for each vacancy, may be made by committee appointed by the president and may be made from the floor.

Section 5. Regular Meetings. Without other notice than this bylaw, a regular meeting of the board of directors shall be held immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of members. The board of directors may provide by resolution the time and place, within the state of Washington as the place for holding any other regular meetings of the board of directors or committees called by them. In addition the president or any director may call a special meeting of the board of directors.

Section 6. Notice. Written notice of special meetings of the board of directors stating the time and place thereof shall be given at least two (2) days prior to the date set for such meeting by the person authorized to call such meeting of the secretary of the corporation either by personal delivery to each director or by telegram. If mailed, the notice shall be deemed to be given when deposited in the United States mail, postage

prepaid, so addressed to the director. If notice is given by telegram, the notice shall be deemed given when the telegram is delivered to the telegraph company for transmission. If no place for such meeting is designated in the notice thereof, the meeting shall be held at the registered office of the corporation. Any director may waive notice of any meeting at any time. The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting except where the director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the board of directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.

<u>Section 7. Quorum.</u> A majority of the number of directors fixed by these Bylaws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business at any meeting of directors.

<u>Section 8. Manner of Acting.</u> The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting or adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the board of directors unless the act of a greater number is required by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

<u>Section 9. Removal.</u> At a special meeting of the membership called for that purpose, any one or more of the board of directors may be removed from office with or without cause by a majority vote of the membership. Except until the initial term of the directors has expired if any one or more directors is so removed, new directors may be elected at this same meeting.

Section 10. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the board of directors, including a vacancy occurring by removal during the initial term of directors, may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors though less than a quorum of the board of directors. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office. Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors shall be filled by the board of directors for a term of office continuing only until the next election of directors by members.

Section 11. Architectural Control. The directors of this corporation shall act as the architectural control committee described in the Declaration of Protective Covenants for Vintage Hills as described in Article II Paragraph 8, and 9 of the Articles of Incorporation.

#### ARTICLE V. OFFICERS

<u>Section 1. Number.</u> The officers of the corporation shall be president, one or more vice presidents, a secretary and a treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the board of directors. Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary or appropriate may be elected or appointed by the board of directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person except the offices of president and secretary.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The officers of the corporation to be elected by the board of directors may be elected for such term as the board may deem advisable not to exceed three years. Officers of the corporation shall be elected at the first meeting of directors following the expiration of the term of office. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified regardless of his term of office, except in the event of his prior death or resignation or his removal in the manner hereinafter provided.

<u>Section 3. Removal.</u> Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the board of directors may be removed by the board of directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment of an officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights or rights to compensation.

<u>Section 4. Vacancies.</u> A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the board of directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

#### ARTICLE VI. CONTRACT, LOANS, CHECKS, DEPOSIT

Section 1. Contracts. The board of directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instruments in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and that authority may be general or confined to specific instances. A director or officer of the corporation shall not be disqualified by his office from dealing or contracting with the corporation either as a vendor, purchaser, creditor, debtor or otherwise. The fact that any director or officer, or any firm of which any director of the corporation is a member, officer or director, is in any way interested in any transaction or contract shall not make the transaction or contract void or voidable, or require the director or officer of the corporation to account to the corporation for any profits therefrom if the transaction or contract is or shall be authorized, ratified or approved by vote of a majority of a quorum of the board of directors excluding the interested director.

Section 2. Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the board of directors. That authority may be general or confined to specific instances. No loans shall be made by the corporation to its members, officers or directors.

Section 3. Checks, Drafts, Deposits, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation shall be signed by the officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation and in the manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the board of directors. All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from

time to time to the credit of the corporation in the banks, trust companies or other depositories as the board or directors may select.

#### ARTICLE VII. WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any member or director of the corporation under the provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or law, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.

#### ARTICLE VIII. AMENDMENTS

Except for Section 2 and 3 of Article IV which may only be amended with the unanimous consent of all of the memberships entitled to vote, these Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed and new bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the board of directors at a meeting called for that purpose.

The foregoing was adopted as the Bylaws of Vintage Hills Homeowners Association at the first meeting of directors held on September 18, 1997.

	, Secretary
I Mai A Via Cheria	
Chairman	

#### VINTAGE HILLS HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION

The Vintage Hills Homeowner's Association (VHHOA) Architectural Control Committee (ACC) wishes to remind all of our neighbors that every homeowner is legally bound by the "Declaration of Protective Covenants" of the Association. Homeowners intending to make home improvements, additions and/or modifications to their homes and property are required to submit their written requests (see attached form) to the ACC for approval **prior** to making any improvements defined by the Declaration. The ACC is composed entirely of homeowners residing within the Vintage Hills subdivision.

Home improvement considerations including, but not necessarily limited to, the construction of storage sheds, dog kennels or runs, swimming pools, bath houses, sport courts, "doll houses," playground structures, hot tubs/spas, fencing, landscape screens, house/front door/shutter painting, basketball hoops/portable goals, gazebos, foundations, driveway extensions, and retaining walls, all require a written request submitted to the ACC for evaluation and approval, at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed construction or installation. All submittal requests to the ACC must be in written form, contain specific information concerning the improvement, and be submitted in duplicate form, before any action is taken by the ACC.

Please allow sufficient time for the ACC to address the issues and concerns of the homeowners and the neighborhood. While the ACC will try to accommodate our neighbors as much as possible, it does take time for the committee to meet and discuss the request. Please allow between 2-4 weeks for the ACC to complete the review process after receipt of a properly executed ACC request.

We have attached an ACC "Homeowner Improvement Approval form to further ease the overall process. This will not only assist you in making sure that you have included all the necessary plans and information, but it will also allow the ACC to process requests more quickly, with less need for follow-up questions and delays.

Homeowners that fail to submit a written request for approval from the ACC with sufficient information concerning their proposed improvement, or proceed with the work prior to obtaining approval, run the risk of not only compromising the community standards defined by the "Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions," but also possible legal action for the enforcement of any improvement activity deemed in violation of the Declaration.

The following is a partial list of typical examples that may arise:

1. Lawns should be mowed regularly and weeds kept under control. Your neighbors will thank you for it.

3/18/04

## VINTAGE HILLS HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION

- 2. Installation or temporary use of fixed or portable basketball goals (state & county ordinances may apply).
- 3. Flowerbeds visible from the street should be weeded regularly.
- 4. Boats, utility or camping trailers, and recreational vehicles need to be stored out of sight, and motor homes and travel trailers are not allowed in the community except to load and unload per Article B, Section 6 of the Covenants.
- 5. Old pick up trucks/cars shall not be stored in driveways or streets per Article B, Section 6.

The ACC and VHHOA requests that you help us to preserve the aesthetics of our neighborhood, be considerate of your fellow homeowners, and to help maintain property values within the community for the benefit of all homeowners.

Please direct all inquiries and ACC Requests for Approval (in duplicate) to:

Vintage Hills HOA Board of Directors Architectural Control Committee c/o

Address:

12809 SE 301st Street

Auburn, WA 98092

Phone:

(253) 351-9046

E-Mail:

bpbaggett1@msn.com

# VINTAGE HILLS HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION (VHHOA) ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL COMMITTEE (ACC)

### **Homeowner Improvement Approval Application**

accordance with Article 'B' of the Declaration of Protective Covenants of the VHHOA, the following information is to be furnished to the ACC, in duplicate, to evaluate and consider for approval a proposed improvement. The ACC has thirty (30) days from receipt of a properly executed application in which to evaluate and respond with a decision to either approve or disapprove the proposed request (see preface sheet). Name: \_\_\_\_\_Address: \_\_\_\_ Lot/Division Number: \_\_\_\_\_Phone: \_\_\_\_\_Date: \_\_\_\_\_ Project Description: Project Period of Performance (From/To): Note: A properly executed application must be submitted at least thirty (30) days prior to start of any work, and shall contain the following information: Yes No **ACC Use Only** a. Provide a scaled elevation sketch/drawing of proposed structure or improvement including all dimensions on a site plat of lot with reference to existing and finished lot grades and other structures. b. Provide a detailed design of the proposed structure or improvement, and any proposed landscape screening. if applicable. c. Description of exterior finish & roofing material(s). d. Description of exterior color(s) including brand name, paint number, and paint chip sample of primary, trim, and/or accents. e. Copies of all required permits (city/county/state), if applicable (Homeowner's responsibility to determine). Landscape plan/sketch, if applicable. Complete plans and specifications. Note: Additional information may be required by the ACC depending on the specific nature and complexity of the proposed improvement as submitted for evaluation and approval consideration. Signature of Applicant: \_\_\_\_\_\_Date: \_\_\_\_\_ ACC Approval: \_\_\_\_\_\_Date: \_\_\_\_\_